


Minutes - Special Council Meeting 30-16 Page 2 of 4 

(i) Purpose of Meeting: 

Mr. Aquilina advised that the purpose of this meeting is to present Official 
Plan Amendment No. 3 for the East Waterfront Secondary Plan. 

(ii) Method of Notice: 

Mr. Aquilina advised that Notice of the Public Meeting was administered in 
accordance with Sections 17 and 26 of the Planning Act, as amended , and 
Section 3 of Ontario Regulation 543106. 

The Notice of Public Meeting was advertised in the "Niagara This Week" 
newspaper on September 29, 2016. The Notice was also posted on the 
City of Port Colborne website. 

(iii) Explanation of Procedure to be Followed: 

Mr. Aquilina advised that the procedure to be followed this evening will be to 
present Planning & Development Services Department Report 2016-170, to 
hear any comments from Council to Planning staff, to open the meeting to 
the public for comments and/or questions, to announce the requirements of 
the Planning Act for written notice request of passage of the proposed 
Official Plan Amendment, and to provide a brief explanation of future 
meetings regarding the application. 

(iv) Presentation of Application for Official Plan Amendment: 

Mr. Aquilina advised that upon further review it was discovered that a few 
minor amendments are required for the Official Plan. 

Mr. Aquilina made reference to a PowerPoint presentation which highlighted 
proposed changes to the East Waterfront Secondary Plan (a copy of the 
presentation is attached). Mr. Aquilina advised that the Official Plan 
currently designates the yellow highlighted area as a low density urban 
neighbourhood. Mr. Aquilina noted that this is not what he envisions for 
this area and it would be more appropriate to change this to a medium 
density residential area. The minimum net density would range from 35 to 
70 units per hectare. He further noted that the orange highlighted area is 
currently designated as a medium density urban neighbourhood and that it 
is proposed to be changed to a high density residential neighbourhood. 
This would have a minimum net density range of 70 to 100 units per 
hectare. Both of these areas would be developed in accordance with 
applicable zoning by-law uses and regulations. 

Mr. Aquilina also advised that the area near the end of Lake Road is 
proposed to be changed from General Industrial to Industrial. Mr. Aquilina 
explained that there are no policies in place for a General Industrial 
category. Mr. Aquilina also noted that outside storage areas will not be 
permitted 

Mr. Aquilina then made reference to the green highlighted area along the 
east side of the Welland Canal. This is to be changed from Parks and 
Open Space to Industrial. Mr. Aquilina explained that the environmental 
cleanup to turn it into Parks and Open Space would be too cost prohibitive. 
It would be more appropriate to keep it as Industrial. 

Mr. Aquilina advised that this concludes the presentation of the Official Plan 
amendments for the East Waterfront Secondary Plan. He noted that while 
there are not many changes being proposed they are however necessary 
and better reflect the existing conditions in this area. 



Minutes - Special Council Meeting 30-16 Page 3 of 4 

(v) Questions of Clarification to Planning Staff: 

Mr. Aquilina then asked if there were any questions of clarification by 
Council to Planning staff. 

Councillor Desmarais questioned Mr. Aquilina as to what prompted the 
change from Parks and Open Space to Industrial. Mr. Aquilina responded 
that this area was a former salvage area. To remove the contamination 
from the soil would prove to be too costly to change it to a park. 

Councillor Desmarais stated that she is in agreement with the changes to 
medium and high density neighbourhoods, however, she would like to see 
more mixed uses, such as for crafters and home business use. Councillor 
Desmarais stated that she believes this could bring life back to the existing 
storefronts. Mr. Aquilina responded that the Neighbourhood Commercial 
uses could still be used. This would be outlined in the zoning by-law under 
the home occupation by-law which already allows a mix of residential and 
commercial uses. Councillor Desmarais questioned if this would mean 
extra costs to the residents. Mr. Aquilina responded that as long as the 
home occupation by-law is followed it would be permitted at no extra cost. 

Mayor Maloney questioned Mr. Aquilina as to the white highlighted area on 
the east side of the Canal. Mr. Aquilina responded that these lands are 
owned by Transport Canada and some is occupied by Allied Marine. These 
lands would remain as Industrial and are not subject to the East Waterfront 
Secondary Plan. Mayor Maloney questioned whether there have been any 
applications made for the areas designated as Parks and Open spaces. 
Mr. Aquilina responded in the negative. 

Before opening the meeting to the public Mr. Aquilina then read the 
following cautionary statements into the record: 

"If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public 
meeting or make written submissions to the City of Port Colborne before the 
proposed Official Plan Amendment is approved, the person or public body 
is not entitled to appeal the decision of the City of Port Col borne to the 
Ontario Municipal Board." 

And; 

"If a person or public body does not make oral submissions at a public 
meeting or make written submissions to the City of Port Colborne before the 
proposed Official Plan Amendment is approved the person or public body 
may not be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario 
Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of the board, there are reasonable 
ground to add the person or public body as a party." 

(vi) Oral Presentations and/or Questions by Public: 

Nil. 

(vii) Announcement Respecting Written Notice of Passage of Official Plan 
Amendment: 

Mr. Aquilina advised that if anyone wishes "to be notified of the approval of 
the Official Plan Amendment they must make a written request to the Clerk. 
Only those persons and public bodies that give the Clerk a written request 
for the notice of the passing of a by-law will be given notice." 



Minutes - Special Council Meeting 30-16 Page 4 of 4 

(viii) Explanation of Future Meetings: 

Mr. Aquilina advised that this concludes the Public Hearing under the 
Planning Act. The proposed Official Plan Amendment will be placed on 
Council's agenda for the November 14, 2016 meeting. 

6. Adjournment: 

No. 199 Moved by Councillor A. Desmarais 
Seconded by Councillor B. Kenny 

That the Council meeting be adjourned at approximately 6:44 p.m. 
CARRIED. 

John Malone 
Mayor 

Minutes prepared by the Department of Planning and Development. 

DA/hm 



Proposed 
Official Plan Amendment 

East Waterfront Secondary Plan 
File 009-02-16 

Proposed Chanaes 

Change to Medium 

Port Colborne 
Official Plan 

Schedule F: E.ils tWalerfront 
Seconda ry Plan 

Density Reslden lial Cl 1Jh111~1p;,1 Bound.,,-y 

I -:'t 5ec0fl::l~ry Plan Nu 
) low--Ol!ns1~ U1bltn 

Change to Hig~ 
Density Residential • IMi!\J1um-Demcty Urbani 

• Ne19hoourhood 

Remove • M1~ed U&e Areas 

hllg hr ~1oc11.1,u1a1Are3s 

I 
Remove 
Oes1gnal!on 

• Park1 !I nd Coen Space 

Ro.all Ne t-York 

... ~., ,,, .,,., ...... , ..... . ..... .... ... ,,-,, ........ ~ -...... .. 
•'I ,~ ., -, ;.01- -,~ , .I • • .._•••I ·• 
-·..-~ 1-..-~ • .,_ 

10/31/16 

1 



•' 

The purpose of OPA 3 is to modify t he Section 5.2 - East Waterfront 
Secondary Plan with the following: 
Section 5.2.2 (a) is removed and replaced with the following: 

a) Medium Density Urban Neighbourhood will: 
i} Have a minimum net density ranging from 35 to 70 units per 
hectare; and 
ii} Be developed in accordance with the applicable zoning by-law 
uses and regulations. 

Section 5.2.2 (b) is removed and replaced with the following: 
b} High Density Urban Neighbourhood will: 

i} Have a minimum net density ranging from 70 to 100 units per 
hectare; and 
ii} Be developed in accordance with the applicable zoning by-law 
uses and regulations. 
These modifications are being proposed to allow and support a greater 
range in housing options than are available through the Zoning By-law. 
Section 5.2.2 (d) is removed and replaced with the following: 

d} Indust rial will : 
i} Be subject to the policies of Section 3.10 of this 

Plan; and 
ii} Not be permitt ed to have outside storage areas. 

_J 

< z 
< :_, 
c 
z 
< 
....J 
....J 
~ 

:::: 

10/ 31/16 

2 


